
 
 

02.17.2026 Agenda - Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
Watch Live In Person or via YouTube at:  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA 
 
Citizens may sign up to speak in person at the Council Meeting before the 
regular meeting starts on the Public Comments Sign-in Sheet outside the 
Council Chambers Doors to address County Services and Operations.  
Presentations are limited to 3 minutes per person, and total input is 
limited to 30 minutes. Written comments must be submitted by 1 PM on 
the meeting date by emailing comments@jaspercountysc.gov  
(Ordinance #08-17) 
 
To participate in a Public Hearing for a specific agenda item, email written 
public comments to comments@jaspercountysc.gov by 1:00 PM on 
Tuesday, February 17, 2026, or sign in on the colored  
Public Hearing Sign-in Sheet outside the Council Chambers Doors before 
the meeting starts. Public Hearing comments are limited to 3 minutes per 
person. 
 
Agenda support (e-packet) can be found at:  
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/government/council/county-council-
agendas-e-packets-and-minutes/ 
For more information, call 843-717-3696. Instructions may also be found 
at the Jasper County website www.jaspercountysc.gov 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA
mailto:comments@jaspercountysc.gov
mailto:comments@jaspercountysc.gov
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/government/council/county-council-agendas-e-packets-and-minutes/
https://www.jaspercountysc.gov/government/council/county-council-agendas-e-packets-and-minutes/
http://www.jaspercountysc.gov/


 
 

02.17.2026 Agenda - Page 2 of 5 
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Building  
  358 Third Ave., Ridgeland, SC. 29936 

         Tuesday, February 17, 2026 

➢ Please silence your phones during the Meeting. 
 
1.  Call the Council Meeting to Order by Chairman Rowell 
 
Clerk’s Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information Act:  In accordance with South Carolina Code 
of Laws, 1976, Section 30-4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were 
posted at least 24 hours prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on 
the county website, and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or 
organizations requesting notification. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation:  
 
3. Approval of the Agenda:  
 
4. Approval of the Consent Agenda: 
Approval of the Consent Agenda passes all Consent Agenda Items. Consent Agenda Items are not considered 
separately unless a Councilmember requests it. In the event of such a request, the item is placed at the end of 
the Public Hearings, Ordinances, and Action Items.  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

 A) Approval of the Minutes 09.02.2025 and 09.11. 2025 
 
B) Andrew Fulghum – Consideration of the 3rd Reading of Ordinance #O-2026-06 of Jasper 
County Council Approving the Transfer of Custody, Management and Operation of the Jasper 
County Detention Center to the Jasper County Sheriff Pursuant to S.C. Code § Ann. 24-5-12, 
and Other Matters Related Thereto. (1st reading – Title Only on 01.20.2026; 2nd reading 
02.02.2026)  

 
This is the end of the Consent Agenda Items. 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 



 
 

02.17.2026 Agenda - Page 3 of 5 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________
5. Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed  
purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice, where the legal advice related to  
pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  
situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim –  
(1) Lease Agreement with the Jasper County Chamber of Commerce and the Jasper County Historical 
Society for the use of the Perry House  
(2) Property Management Agreement with the Jasper County Chamber of Commerce to Manage the 
Jasper County Farmer’s Market  
(3) Land Lease Agreements for Hanger Developments and Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
grant applications for the Claude Dean - Ridgeland Airport  
 
(5) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of services 
encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area served by a public 
body – (1) Tax Incentive Proposal for Project Heat 

 
Any Executive Session Matter on Which Discussion Has Not Been Completed May Have Discussion Suspended for 
the Purpose of Beginning the Open Session at Its Scheduled Time, And Council May Return to Executive Session 
Discussion After the Conclusion of The Open Session Agenda Items. 
Note: Please Be Advised, There May Be Votes Based on Items from the Executive Session. 
 

 

• Come out of Executive Session: 
 

• Return to Open Session: 
 

o 5.1. Council Action to be taken on items as discussed in Executive Session 
 
Note: Council may act on any item appearing on the agenda, including items discussed in executive session.  

6. PRESENTATIONS: 
 

A) Felicia Knopf, Lowcountry Council of Governments – CDBG Presentation and Public Hearing to  
solicit public input on community needs and priorities for housing, public facilities, and economic 
development, matters related to housing needs and Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing in 
anticipation of participation in the Beaufort County/Lowcountry Regional HOME Consortium funded 
by the US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and Jasper County’s Citizen 
Participation Plan, developed in anticipation of participation in the State of South Carolina's 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. 



 
 

02.17.2026 Agenda - Page 4 of 5 
 

  
 B) Gene Zapfel, Co-Chair of Keep Beaufort County Beautiful Board – Presentation on Single-Use  
 Plastics Survey Results  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
   
7. CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

 
Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance Number #08-17. Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in 
person at the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:00 PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address the Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person, and total public input will be limited to 30 MINUTES. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________
8. RESOLUTIONS 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
A) Eric Larson – Consideration of Resolution #R-2026-11 a Resolution of Jasper County, South 
Carolina County Council to approve the procurement of Engineering Services through a Work 
Authorization to Holt Consulting Company, LLC to develop construction plans and Federal Aviation 
Administration (FAA) and South Carolina Aeronautics Commission (SCAC) applications for the 2026 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the Claude Dean - Ridgeland Airport located at 262 Honorable 
Barbara B. Clark Drive near Ridgeland. 

 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES, AND ACTION ITEMS 
 

 
A) Lisa Wagner - Consideration of the 3rd Reading of Ordinance #O-2026-03 Approving a 
Development Agreement by and between JH Hiers Construction, LLC., Hiers Pine Level, LLC. and 
Jasper County, Regarding Real Property Known as TMP # 052-00-03- 012, Consisting of Approximately 
264.53 Acres, Pursuant to the South Carolina Local Government Development Agreement Act and 
Article IV, Title 20 of the Code of Ordinances of Jasper County, and Authorizing the Chairman of 
Jasper County Council to Execute said Development Agreement. (Pine Level DA) – (Public hearing and 
1st reading 12.15.2025; Public Hearing and 2nd reading Tabled on 01.05.2026; 2nd reading approved 
02.02.2026)  
 
B) Lisa Wagner – Consideration of 3rd Reading of an Ordinance #O-2025-23 to amend the Official 
Zoning Map of Jasper County so as to transfer a property consisting of approximately 264.53 acres 
and bearing Jasper County Tax Map Number 052-00-03-012, from the Rural Preservation Zone to the 
Resource Extraction on the Jasper County Official Zoning Map; And Other Matters Relating Thereto 
(1st -reading July 21, 2025 and Public Hearing August 18, 2025 2nd reading tabled; 2nd reading 
01.05.2025 Tabled; 2nd reading 02.02.2026)  
 
C) Eric Larson – Consideration of the 1st Reading of an Ordinance establishing the Jasper 
County Greenbelt Program as mandated in the 2024 Referendum on Transportation Sales and 
Use Tax within Jasper County. (1st reading was removed from agenda on 02.02.2026) 



 
 

02.17.2026 Agenda - Page 5 of 5 
 

D) Lisa Wagner  – Public Hearing and consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance  
#O-2026-07 of an ordinance of Jasper County Council to amend the Official Zoning Map of 
Jasper County so as to transfer three (3) properties located along Grays Highway, 1) bearing 
Jasper County Tax Map Number 062-20-01-002 consisting of 0.60 acres from the Residential 
Zone to the Industrial Development Zone; and 2) bearing Jasper County Tax Map Number 
062-20-01-006 consisting of 1.20 acres from the Residential Zone to the Industrial 
Development Zone; and 3) bearing Jasper County Tax Map Number 062-21-01-002 consisting 
of 2.74 acres from the Residential Zone to the Industrial Development Zone on the Jasper 
County Official Zoning Map. (Property owned by Jasper County)  
(1st reading 02.02.2026) 
 

E) Jim Iwanicki - Consideration of Sales Tax Advisory Committee Recommendations.  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
10. Administrator’s Report 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
11. Councilmember Comments and Discussion 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
12. Adjournment:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Special Accommodations Available Upon Request to Individuals with Disabilities, please contact the Jasper 
County ADA & Civil Rights Coordinator, Tisha Williams in person at 358 Third Avenue, Ridgeland, South 
Carolina, by telephone at (843) 717-3690 or via email at jcadministrator@jaspercountysc.gov no later than 48 
hours prior to the scheduled meeting.  

mailto:jcadministrator@jaspercountysc.gov




 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL 

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg.  
     358 3rd Avenue, Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

    Tuesday, September 2, 2025 

 
Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Vice Chairman Joey Rowell, Councilman Chris VanGeison, Councilman 
Joe Arzillo Absent: Councilman Gene Ceccarelli   
Staff Present: County Administrator Andrew Fulghum, Clerk to Council Wanda Giles, Kimberly Burgess, Lisa 
Wagner, James Iwanicki, Nicole Holt, Chief Russell Wells, and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   
 
Mr. Fulghum gave an introduction of the workshop items. 
 
Workshop: 

• Airport Commission 

• General Discussion 
 
Motion to go into executive session before the Workshop: Councilman Arzillo 
Second: Chairman Kemp 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
Motion to come out of from executive session: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Chairman Kemp 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
After the Executive Session ended and the Council came out of Executive Session, Vice Chairman Rowell noted 
that after coming out of executive session that council was taking the Airport Commission off of the agenda. 
They asked the County Administrator to set up a meeting with the FAA, Council and Airport Commission in 
order to move forward. Mr. Fulghum mentioned that the FAA would not meet with a political body, but that 
staff would work on this request. Chairman Kemp noted under the General Discussion topic that the Planning 
Commission would like a workshop with council at some point. 
 
Motion to adjourn the workshop: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
     
1. Call to Order of the Jasper County Council Meeting by Chairman Kemp  

 



 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

Chairman Kemp called the meeting to order. The Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information 
Act was read for the records as follows:  In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-
4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were posted at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on the county website, 
and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or organizations requesting 
notification.  

 
The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman Rowell.  
 
3. Approval of the Consent Agenda Items:  

Approval of Consent Agenda passes all Consent Agenda Items. Consent Agenda Items are not 
considered separately unless any Councilmember so requests. In the event of such a request the item is 
placed at the end of the Public Hearings, Ordinances and Action Items.  
 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda Items: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 

4. Approval of the Regular Agenda:  
 
Motion to approve the Regular Agenda Items with the removal of Item Numbers 5, 7 and 13; and add Item # 
7A for an Emergency Ordinance: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
PRESENTATION 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
5. Chief Russell Wells: Award Presentation to Kim Recchia for being selected from Fire News as one of the 2025 
Training Officers of the Year. – This item was removed from the Agenda. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
CHAIRMAN KEMP’S COMMENTS:   
 
Chairman Kemp a statement for the record, please see Attachment # 1.  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
      CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

Open Floor to the Public per Ordinance Number #08-17 Any citizen of the County may sign to speak in 
person at the Council Meeting (before the Council Meeting’s 6:00PM start time on the Sign-In Sheet on the 
Podium), to address Council on matters pertaining to County Services and Operations. Presentations will be 
limited to three (3) minutes per person and total public input will be limited to 30 minutes. 
 



 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

• Mayor Williams (City of Hardeeville): Representing the Southern Low Country Advisory Board (SoLoCo), he 

urged the Council to support a "Tri-Share" childcare program to address the significant economic impact of 

childcare issues in South Carolina. 

• Sally Nielsen to discuss Item # 7 (Resolution # R-2025-47) which had been removed from the agenda and 

discussed the Airport Commission and the ongoing situation. 

• Richard Dean signed up but relinquished his time to speak. 

• Denver Gore: Spoke regarding the Airport Commission and his desire for Council to listen to the Airport 

Commission. 

• Brian Hand signed up to speak but was not present. 

• Patricia Hicks DuPont: Discussed her complaints of Council Meeting times and asked Council for 

hybrid/virtual meeting options to improve accessibility for rural residents. 

• Hettie Frazier: Inquired about the timeline and point of contact for rebuilding the Coosawhatchie 

Community Center. 

• Lafayette Weber: Discussed concerns regarding law enforcement neglect and public access to county 

employees. 

For more information on this topic please go to our YouTube Channel and see this video at  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTIONS  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6. Andrew Fulghum – Public Hearing and consideration of Resolution #R-2025-49 To Authorize the Jasper 
County Administrator to Execute a Surrender of Premises, Equipment Use, Transfer and Transition 
Agreement with its First Addendum by and between Jasper County, Jasper County Sheriff, and Jasper 
Animal Rescue Mission Regarding Animal Services and Related Matters. 
 
Mr. Fulghum was present to address and review this request and noted a change in the schedule that the 
Council had. The equipment purchase amount was amended to $34,740.26 based on a depreciation schedule.  
The public hearing on this item was opened. Ms. Patricia Hicks Dupont spoke and discussed the care for 
animals but was concerned about the care for the citizens. There were no other comments, so the public 
hearing was closed. 
 
Motion to approve with amendment of $34,740: Councilman VanGeison 
Second: Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

 7. Andrew Fulghum – Consideration of a Resolution #R-2025-47 Adopting Airport Leasing Policy Principles and 
Directives to County Staff to Incorporate the Policy Directives Into Lease Documents, Appropriate Ordinances 
and/or Resolutions Regarding the Ridgeland Claude Dean Airport, and Matters Related Thereto. (Tabled at the 
07.21.2025 meeting; Removed from the 08.18.2025 Agenda) – This item was removed from the Agenda. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND ACTION ITEMS 

7A. Councilman VanGeison – Consideration of an Emergency Ordinance #O-2025-27A an Emergency 
Ordinance amending Chapter 3 of the Jasper County Code of Ordinances to establish Designated Breeds, 
Spay and Neuter Requirements and Breeding Licensure to address the overwhelming Abandoned Animal 
and Overpopulation Issue. 
 
Councilman VanGeison discussed this Emergency Ordinance which established mandatory spay/neuter and 
microchipping requirements for pit bull-type dogs due to a shelter crisis. It includes a four-month grace period 
with free services and a new breeder license requirement. He discussed the issues that had led up to this need 
for an emergency ordinance and what it entailed. For more information on this topic please go to our YouTube 
Channel and see this video at  https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . 
 
Motion to approve: Councilman VanGeison 
Second: Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
For a copy of the Emergency Ordinance # O-2025-27A, in its entirety, please see Attachment # 2.   
 
8. Brittany Ward – Consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-20 of Jasper County Council to 
amend the Jasper County Code Of Ordinances to Establish Penalties, Authorize the Enforcement of the 
Code, and other matters related thereto by Amending the Following Chapters: Chapter 1 General 
Provisions; Chapter 3 Animals; Chapter 4 Alcoholic Beverages; Chapter 6 Buildings And Building Regulations; 
Chapter 8 Businesses; Chapter 9 Civil Emergencies; Chapter 10 Nuisances, Junkyards, Noise, And Litter; 
Chapter 18 Offenses And Miscellaneous Provisions; And Chapter 25 Streets, Sidewalks, And Public Places. 
(1st reading 07.21.2025; Public hearing held 08.18.2025)  
 
Ms. Ward was present for the second reading of this ordinance.  She noted that prior to the 3rd reading two 
elements in this ordinance needed to be amended. She mentioned that the discussion previously had been 
whether or not the administrative citations would apply fully to the building code section. She said that she 
asked for an amendment to Code Section 6-34 to include Section 1-8(A) which was the Administrative Citation. 
She noted it was already specifically being adopted in the proposed ordinance and specific code sections. She 
mentioned that to ensure it was applied uniformly across the entire building codes and not having any impact 
on the adoption of the International Building Codes (which was required by the State). She asked that Section 
6-34 be amended.   
 
Motion to approve with amendment to Section 6-34: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman Arzillo 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

 
9. Lisa Wagner – Consideration of the 3rd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-21 to amend Article 9:6, Accessory 
Structures, of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, to Allow Increased Building Sizes For Accessory 
Structures in the Residential, Rural Preservation, and Resource Conservation Zoning Districts. (1st Reading 
07.21.2025; Public hearing and 2nd reading 08.18.2025)  
 
Ms. Wagner was present to review and discuss this request. This information was taken from Ms. Wagner’s 
Staff Report that she reviewed on this item. She reviewed her information from her staff report which was 
attached in the agenda e-packet. She noted that Article 9:6 of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance, regulates 
accessory structures, which are defined as any structure over 120 square feet that supports an approved 
accessory use. Currently, the ordinance has a size limitation for accessory buildings in the Residential, Rural 
Preservation and Resource Conservation Zoning Districts. While the size limitation for accessory structures 
was reasonable and appropriate for small lots, properties within subdivisions and near the municipalities, the 
size limitation creates problems for property owners in the rural areas of the County. Based on August 18, 
2025, Council Meeting and the conversations over the past couple of months regarding size limitations for 
accessory structures, staff had provided three different alternatives (proposed amendments) for the Council 
Members to consider. Ms. Wagner noted that the proposed ordinance would amend Articles 9:6.1, 9 .6.2 and 
9:6.4 of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance. Below is a summary of each alternative (proposed amendment):  
 
Alternative 1: The red text she noted was the new language that has been previously proposed, red language 
highlighted in yellow, represents brand new language being proposed, strikethroughs represents language to 
be deleted. 
 
• Amend Article 4 of the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance to add a definition for agricultural structures. 
• Increased size limitations for accessory structures in both Residential and Rural Preservation Zoning Districts 
from what was previously presented (Referring to Section 9:6.2, 5 and Section 9:6.4 #1). 
• Replaced "total ground floor area" with "total square footage of principal structure" in both Residential and 
Rural Preservation Zoning Districts and increased the percentage of the principal structure that can be used 
for determining the size of accessory structures (Referring to Section 9:6.2, 5 and Section 9:6.4 # 1 ). 
• Provided an exemption for agricultural structures in both Residential and Rural Preservation Zoning Districts 
(Referring to Section 9:6.2 #6 and Section 9:6.4 #2).  
 
Alternative 2: The red text she noted was the new language that has been previously proposed and 
recommended by the Planning Commission. Language which had been highlighted in yellow, represented 
additional recommendation from Planning Commission when the ordinance was deferred back to them for 
another review. Strike-throughs represented language to be deleted.  
 
•  Is the proposed Ordinance presented at the July 28, 2025, County Council Workshop.  
• After the Planning Commission reviewed the Ordinance for the second time, this is the version they 
recommended along with the "additional recommendations", which included replacing "total ground floor 
area" with "total square footage" regarding the principal building size when determining the size limitation for 
accessory structures, and exempting agricultural structures in the Rural Preservation Zoning District.  
• The Ordinance for Alternative 2 has been updated to include additional recommendations. 
• The square footages presented in this version of the ordinance is smaller than Alternative I, but larger than 
what is currently allowed by the Jasper County Zoning Ordinance today. 



 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

 
Alternative 3: The red text she noted was the new language that has been previously proposed and 
strikethroughs represented language to be deleted. 
 
• Is the proposed ordinance presented at the August 18, 2025, County Council Meeting. 
• Removed all size limitations for accessory structures. 
• Alternative 3 is not recommended by the Planning Commission or Planning Staff. 
 
Ms. Wagner noted that the Planning Commission Recommendation was after several iterations of a proposed 
amendment to increase the size limitations for accessory structures. Staff she noted was recommending 
Alternative # 1 and hoped this option would strike a good balance of allowing accessory structures to be 
bigger while still providing some limitations to the building size. For more information on this topic please go 
to our YouTube Channel and see this video at 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . 
 
Motion to approve Alternative # 3 without any size requirements : Councilman Rowell  
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
10. Lisa Wagner - Consideration of the 3rd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-07  to amend the Official Zoning 
Map of Jasper County so as to Transfer a Property Located at 139 Hartwell Avenue, Bearing Jasper County 
Tax Map Number 080-03-00-019 From The Mixed Business Zoning District to the General Commercial Zoning 
District on the Jasper County Official Zoning Map. (1st Reading 03.03.2025; Public Hearing And 2nd Reading 
03.17.2025)  
 
Ms. Wagner was present to review and discuss this information with Council. She reviewed her information 
from her staff report which was attached in the agenda e-packet. Chairman Kemp expressed his issues and 
concerns on this item. He noted that he was against this and explained his reasoning for this statement. For 
more information on this topic please go to our YouTube Channel and see this video at  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . 
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: There were 3 yes votes, and 1 no vote by Chairman Kemp. 
The motion passed. 
 
11. Craig Dannegger and Taylor Boykin – Public Hearing and Consideration of the  3rd Reading of Ordinance 
#O-2025-25 Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Amended and Restated Fee-In-Lieu Of Tax 
Agreements by and between CP Hardeeville, LLC, CPH Parcel A Owner, LLC, CPH Parcel B Owner, LLC, CPH 
Parcel C Owner, LLC, and Jasper County, South Carolina With Respect To Certain Economic Development 
Property in the County, Whereby Such Property Will Be Subject to Certain Payments In Lieu Of Taxes; and 
other matters relating thereto. (Project Clarius) (1st Reading 07.21.2025; Public hearing and 2nd reading 
08.18.2025) 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

Mr. Fulghum introduced this item and noted that Item numbers 11 and 12 dealt with economic development 
incentives. He noted that Item # 11 dealt with the reallocation of a previously approved incentive agreement 
among multiple parcels. He mentioned that this simply reallocated both the incentive and also the investment 
requirements among the different parcels. He noted that Item # 12 dealt with a new FILOT Agreement 
although it is an existing business expanding in Jasper County.   
 
Mr. Boykin noted with Item # 11 which repackages incentives that were already granted to an industrial park 
in Hardeeville. He noted that this takes the already agreed upon incentive (with nothing changing it) but rather 
repackages it for the owner and the tenants in Clarius Park. Chairman Kemp noted that this was just 
separating out the building so they could sell separately.   
 
Mr. Dannegger was also present to address this request. He noted they were grateful for the partnership they 
had experienced with Jasper County. He noted that the primary purpose of this amended and restated set of 
agreements was to simply take the initial agreement that covered the agreement that covered the entire 
master plan park and it broke it down into 4 pieces covering the same land, all the same terms breaking it into 
pieces. He noted that the other thing it achieved was that it reflected an agreement that the County had 
entered into with one of their tenants in the park, TS Conductors, and gave them what was agreed to. The 
public hearing was opened.  There were no other comments and the public hearing closed. 
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Rowell  
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passe 
 
12. Taylor Boykin – Public Hearing and Consideration of the 2nd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-27   
Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a Fee-In-Lieu of Ad Valorem Taxes by and between Jasper County, 
South Carolina and CCBCC Operations, LLC, to Provide for Payment of a Fee-In-Lieu of Taxes; and other 
related matters. (1st Reading 08.18.2025) 
 
Mr. Boykin was present to address and review this request. The public hearing was opened. There was one 
public hearing comment regarding hiring within the Community by Patricia Hicks Dupont. Since there were no 
other public comments, the public hearing closed. Blair Belk discussed the current number of positions at this 
location and noted the number of positions that request would increase.  
 
Motion to approve: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
13. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration and approval of the transfer of property previously deemed surplus to the 
Sheriff Department for use as a support vehicle. – This item was removed from the Agenda. 
 
14. Kimberly Burgess – Public Hearing Only for a public hearing concerning an application to be submitted to 
the SC Dept. of Commerce, Grants Administration on or about September 15, 2025, for a Community 
Development Block Grant for the Coosawhatchie Fire Station.   



 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

 
This item was for public hearing only and no votes were taken. Ms. Burgess noted that this public hearing was 
a requirement of the CDBG Grant. The public hearing was opened and Ms. Patricia Hicks Dupont spoke noting 
that this was good for the fire station, then focused on the Community Center.    
 
15. Jim Iwanicki – Consideration of the approval of the Contract for the Program Manager for the 2024 
Transportation Sales Tax. 
 
Mr. Iwanicki was present to review and address this request for approval of the Contract for the Program 
Manager for the 2024 Transportation Sales Tax. He noted that staff requested that the County Council 
approve the contract with Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering LLC for the Program Management of the 
Transportation Sales Program for a not-to-exceed limit of eight million nine hundred eighty-five thousand 
dollars ($8,985,000.00). Individual Task Orders may also be executed as part of this contract for specified 
projects and tasks, in which the Consultant shall be compensated in accordance with mutually agreed upon 
Task Orders for which the specific scope, schedule and fee for each job order will be individually negotiated. 
Additionally, staff requested that the Council authorize the County Administrator or his designee to execute all 
documents necessary to execute the contract and authorize the County Administrator to execute Individual 
Task Orders as needed as part of this contract with a total not-to-exceed limit of eight million nine hundred 
eighty-five thousand dollars ($8,985,000.00) for all parts of the contract. 
 
Motion to approve the $8.985,000.00 million contract with Infrastructure Consulting and Engineering (ICE) 
LLC to manage the 1% sales tax projects over 15 years: Councilman Arzillo 
Second: Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
_______________________________________________________________________________________  
 16. Approval of the Minutes 05.05.2025 and 05.07.2025  
 
17. Lisa Wagner –  Consideration of the  3rd Reading Of Ordinance #O-2025-24 to amend the Jasper County 
Code Of Ordinances, Chapter 25 – Article III, Naming And Addressing Of Roads, Section 123 Definitions, (1) 
County Road And (2) Private Road, So As To Correct Definitions Due To Scrivener Errors Contained In 
Ordinance Number #O-2025-12. (1st Reading 07.21.2025; Public hearing and 2nd reading 08.18.2025)  
 
18. Lisa Wagner – Consideration of the  3rd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-22 to amend the Official Zoning 
Map of Jasper County so as to Transfer Two Properties Located Along Speedway Boulevard and Purrysburg 
Road, Bearing Jasper County Tax Map Numbers 039-00-01-040 And 039-00-01-041 from the Community 
Commercial and Residential Zoning District to the Community Commercial Zoning District on the Jasper 
County Official Zoning Map. (1st Reading 07.21.2025; Public hearing and 2nd reading 08.18.2025  
 
19. Kimberly Burgess – Consideration of the 3rd Reading of Ordinance #O-2025-26 Amending the Business 
License Ordinance of the County of Jasper to Update the Class Schedule as Required by Act 176 Of 2020. (1st 
Reading 07.21.2025 Public hearing and 2nd reading 08.18.2025) 
All Consent Agenda Items were approved. 



 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

20. Administrator’s Report: Mr. Fulghum reviewed the information from his report. There was one Action 
Items requiring a vote from the Council in the Administrator’s Report for Heather Rath.  
 
Ms. Rath reviewed the request and went through her power point that she prepared. This PowerPoint can be 
viewed by going to https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA. Mr. Fulghum noted 
that these were all funds that the County has because they were a plaintiff in the class action lawsuit and 
noted they were asking officially for a motion so they could make application for the funds.    
 
Motion to direct staff to apply to the SC Opioid Recovery Fund for $62,000 to support year two of the New 
Life Center Contract for Opioid OD Map Administration : Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
  

21. Councilmember Comments and Discussion: Councilmember Comments were given but there were no 
comments that required action. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
22.     Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

(2) Discussion of negotiations incident to proposed contract arrangements and proposed     
purchase or sale of property, the receipt of legal advice where the legal advice related to    
pending, threatened, or potential claim or other matters covered by the attorney-client  
privilege, settlement of legal claims, or the position of the public agency in other adversary  
situations involving the assertion against the agency of a claim – 
Class Action Regarding Ultra Processed Foods--Litigation  
 

Motion to go into executive session: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 
Motion to return to regular session: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed.  
 

• 22.1 Action coming out of executive session:  
 

There was no action coming from of Executive Session.   
 
For more information on this meeting please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . There are also Closed Captions available 
for all of our County Council videos. Just click the "CC" button to follow along.  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA


 
 

Minutes - 09.02.2025  
 

 
 
Motion to adjourn: Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.  

 
Respectfully submitted:      

    
  _______________________________________ 
  Wanda H. Giles 
  Clerk to Council        

                                                                                                        
____________________________________   

          John A. Kemp 
Chairman     

 
 

 



Attachment "A"





Attachment "B"















Minutes – 09.11.2025  
 

JASPER COUNTY COUNCIL  

Jasper County Clementa C. Pinckney Government Bldg  
     358 3rd Avenue Ridgeland, SC 29936                                                                                                                                     

Thursday, September 11, 2025 
Minutes 

 
 

Officials Present: Chairman John Kemp, Vice Chairman Joey Rowell, Councilman Chris VanGeison, Councilman 
Ceccarelli. Absent: Councilman Joe Arzillo   
 
Staff Present: Clerk to Council Wanda Giles and Videographer Jonathan Dunham.   
     
1. Call to Order of the Jasper County Council Meeting by Chairman Kemp  

 
Chairman Kemp called the meeting to order. The Report of Compliance with the Freedom of Information 
Act was read for the records as follows:  In accordance with South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, Section 30-
4-80(d), as amended, notification of the meeting and the meeting agenda were posted at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting on the County Council Building at a publicly accessible place, on the county website, 
and a copy of the agenda was provided to the local news media and all person’s or organizations requesting 
notification.  

 
The Pledge to the Flag was given and the Invocation was given by Councilman VanGeison 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion to approve the agenda:  Councilman Ceccarelli 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
Motion to recess until Vice Chairman Rowell arrived:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second: Councilman Ceccarelli 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
Vice Chairman Rowell arrived at the meeting. 
 
Motion to come out of recess:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second: Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
 
 



Minutes – 09.11.2025  
 

 
4. Executive Session SECTION 30-4-70.   

(a) A public body may hold a meeting closed to the public for one or more of the following reasons: 
 

(1) Discussion of employment, appointment, compensation, promotion, demotion, discipline, or release 
 of an employee, a student, or a person regulated by a public body or the appointment of a person to a    
 public body – County Attorney 
 

Motion to go into Executive Session:  Councilman Ceccarelli 
Second: Councilman Rowell 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
Return to Open Session: 
 
Motion to return to Open Session:  Councilman Rowell 
Second: Councilman VanGeison 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
  

• 4.1 Action coming out of Executive Session: There was no action from Executive Session.  
 
5. Adjournment: 
 
Motion to adjourn:  Councilman VanGeison 
Second: Councilman Ceccarelli 
Vote: Unanimous 
The motion passed. 
 
For more information on this meeting please go to our YouTube Channel for the video go to 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA . There are also Closed Captions available 
for all of our County Council videos. Just click the "CC" button to follow along.  
 
 
The motion passed and the meeting adjourned.  

 
Respectfully submitted:      

    
  _______________________________________ 
  Wanda H. Giles 
  Clerk to Council        

                                                                                                       
____________________________________   

           John A. Kemp 
                                                                                               Chairman     

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBmloqX05cKAsHm_ggXCJlA





































































































































































































































































































































































	0d009463-ac86-4bc6-80e4-4b1f2a71a8c9.pdf
	Item # 4A - 09.02.2025 Minutes
	Letter from John Kemp - Attachment A to the Minutes under Chairman's Comments - under Item 5A
	O-2025-27A - Attachment to the Minutes for Item # 7A (1)  as Attachment B in the Minutes under Item # 7A- Printed out v2


